
 

  

 

 
July 3, 2013 

Addendum No. 1 
to Request For Proposals 
Climate Initiatives Program  

 Electric Vehicle Promotional Campaign Implementation 

dated June 13, 2012 

Dear Consultant: 
 
This letter is Addendum No. 1 to the Request for Proposal for Climate Initiatives 
Program, Bay Area Electric Vehicle Promotional Campaign Implementation, dated 
June 13, 2013 (“RFP”).  Where text is revised, deleted text is shown in strike-through 
format; added text is italicized.  The RFP is revised as follows: 

Addendum 
Item 

Reference Change 

1. RFP, Notice, 
paragraph 3 

Interested firms must submit… their proposals no 
later than 4:00 p.m., Wednesday, July 10 Monday, 
July 15, 2013, in accordance with the instructions 
contained in the RFP.  

2. RFP, Section V, 
CONSULTANT 
SELECTION 
TIMETABLE, 
page 4 

Wednesday, July 10 
Monday, July 15 

Closing date/time for 
receipt of proposals 

Tuesday, July 23 Thursday, 
July 25, 2013*  

Interviews/Discussions (if 
held) 

3. RFP, APPENDIX 
F-4, LOCAL 
AGENCY 
CONSULTANT 
DBE 
INFORMATION, 
page 71 

APPENDIX F E-4, LOCAL AGENCY    
CONSULTANT DBE INFORMATION 

 
 
The remaining provisions of the RFP remain unchanged.  In the event of a conflict 
between this Addendum and the previous version(s), this Addendum takes precedence.  
 
Questions and Answers regarding this RFQ are enclosed with this Addendum.  
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Any questions concerning this addendum to the RFP should be directed to Ursula Vogler, Project
Manager, at (510) 817-5785 or uvoglermtc.ca.gov.

Sincerely,

StevHenger
Executive Director

SH:UV
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REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFP) 
ELECTRIC VEHICLE PROMOTIONAL CAMPAIGN IMPLEMENTATION 

dated June 13, 2013 
 

Proposers’ Conference and Submitted Questions and Answers 
 

July 3, 2013 
 
Q1:  Will you be interviewing every organization that submits a proposal or a subset of that 

group? 
A1:  Please see RFP, Section IX. GENERAL CONDITIONS, subsections D. Proposer Discussions 

and E.  Request for Best and Final Offer. MTC reserves the right to award a contract with or 
without interviews or discussions, and may choose to interview or hold discussions with a “short 
list” of firms. 

 
Q2:  What is the DBE goal and how was it calculated? Where is the DBE goal information listed? 
A2:  MTC has established Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) goal of 4% for any contract 

entered into as a result of this RFP. The DBE goal is calculated according to the CalTrans Local 
Assistance Procedures Manual. For DBE goal information, please see RFP, Appendix E, Federal 
Requirements, page 62, and Appendices E-3 through E-5, pages 69-75. 

 
Q3:  Is the DBE goal for each task or for the entire contract? 
A3:  The DBE goal applies to the entire contract amount. 
 
Q4:  Can the applicants use pre-approved GSA rates, instead of submitting Appendix B, Cost 

and Price Analysis form? 
A4:  Proposers with pre-approved GSA rates may use those rates when completing Appendix B, but the 

Cost and Price Analysis form must be completed and submitted with proposals. 
 
Q5:  Is the consultant that created the campaign plan (Fenton) precluded from bidding on this 

RFP? Further, does Fenton have a conflict of interest in relation to this RFP? 
A5:  MTC does not preclude any consultant from proposing in response to a particular RFP. All 

proposers must indicate in a Transmittal Letter whether any actual or apparent conflicts of interest 
exist and describe a plan for mitigating them. MTC then evaluates all submitted proposals to 
determine whether there exists the potential for bias, because of other activities, relationships or 
contracts of the proposer. Further, MTC requires that firms awarded contracts take all reasonable 
measures to preclude the existence or development of an organizational conflict of interest in 
connection with work performed under their agreements resulting from the original and other 
MTC solicitations. Please see RFP, Section VII. FORM OF PROPOSAL, subsection A. 
Transmittal Letter, page 6, and Section IX. GENERAL CONDITIONS, subsection F. Conflicts 
Of Interest, page 13.  
 

Q6:  Do you have to be a plan holder to submit a proposal? 
A6:  No. Registering as a planholder at MTC’s procurement website serves as a convenience only for 

those who wish to receive e-mail notices of postings to the particular procurement for which they 
have registered as a planholder. 
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Q7:  Is E&O insurance necessary for the work outlined in the RFP? If so, is it necessary to have 

E&O insurance when a proposal is submitted or when the contract is approved?  
A7:  Errors & Omissions insurance is required. Consultants must certify, by submitting a signed 

Appendix D-1, Minimum Insurance Requirements, that required coverages will be provided 
within ten (10) days of MTC’s notice to firm that it wishes to contract with the firm. 

Q8:  Is a relationship with a specific vehicle manufacturer a conflict of interest? 
A8:  MTC would not necessarily consider a proposer’s pre-existing relationship with a specific vehicle 

manufacturer a conflict of interest. However, please see Please see RFP, Section IX. GENERAL 
CONDITIONS, subsection F. Conflicts Of Interest, page 13. 

 
Q9:  Has MTC selected the firm that will be completing the evaluation of the EV promotional 

campaign? What will the role of the firm selected under this RFP be for evaluation of the 
campaign? 

A9:  Yes, it’s ICF International. ICF International completes the evaluation of every Climate 
Initiatives project, including this project. The firm MTC selects under this RFP for the EV 
promotional campaign implementation will collect the data that will be used to evaluate the 
campaign, but ICF International will create the evaluation plan and analyze the data collected.  

Q10:  Is there a preferred time of year to execute the ride and drive events outlined in the RFP's 
scope of work? 

A10:  The preferred time of year is mid-spring to early-fall, but MTC will launch the campaign when 
planning is complete and a launch date has been set. 

 
Q11:  In addition to providing references, do you recommend proposers also provide letters of 

support? 
A11:  No. Please see RFP, Section VII. FORM OF PROPOSAL, pages 5-8, which provides a list of all 

items to be included in the proposal. 
 
Q12:  Task 4 describes the need to maintain on-going content from the campaign but the RFP 

discourages the creation of a separate url/microsite for Electric Feeling. Where would the 
content described in Task 4 be housed and disseminated by the consultant if you do not 
want it stored on a separate url? 

A12:  The home for this content will be determined during the campaign planning process. Most likely 
new social media accounts will need to be created for the campaign, but a new web property will 
not.  
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